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Corporate Prof ile

Associated Companies
Citrus Products of Belize Limited

(46.58%)

Chemical Industries Limited

(40%)

GCG Services Limited

(33.33%)

Caribco Limited

(30%)

Newtech Inc.

(26.2%)

BCL (Barbados) Limited

(25%)

Tower Hill Merchants PLC

(29.36%)

BCB Communications Inc.

(20%)

Banks DIH Limited

(20%)

Our Corporate Profile
Banks Holdings Limited (BHL) is the largest beverage

subsidiaries

conglomerate
including

a

in

Barbados

brewery

-

comprising

Banks

four

(Barbados)

Breweries Ltd., a soft drink plant - Barbados Bottling Co.
Ltd, a dairy - Barbados Dairy Industries Ltd. (Pine Hill
Dairy) and a distribution company - B&B Distribution Ltd.
which includes a wholesale outlet.

BHL’s shares are listed on the Barbados Stock Exchange.
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SUBSIDIARIES
Banks (Barbados) Breweries Limited
Newton, Christ Church
Tel:

(246) 227-6750

Fax: (246) 227-6790

Barbados Bottling Co. Limited
Newton, Christ Church
Tel:

(246) 418-3300

Fax: (246) 418-3350

Barbados Dairy Industries Limited
(Pine Hill Dairy)
The Pine, St. Michael
Tel:

(246) 227-6600

Fax: (246) 227-6660

B&B Distribution Limited
Newton, Christ Church
Tel:

(246) 418-2900
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Fax: (246) 418-2970
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NOTICE OF MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the Fifty-third Annual General Meeting
of Banks Holdings Limited (‘the Company’) will be held at the Lloyd
Erskine Sandiford Centre, Two Mile Hill, St. Michael, Barbados, on
Wednesday, 29 February, 2012 at 4:00 pm for the following purposes:
1. To receive and consider the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31
August, 2011 and the Auditors’ Report thereon;
2. To elect Directors;
3. To appoint Auditors for the ensuing financial year;
4. To transact any other business which may properly come
before the meeting.

By Order of the Board

Cherie S.A. Jones
Corporate Secretary
17 January, 2012

this notice.
		
Registered Office:
Wildey Main Road,
Wildey,
St. Michael,
Barbados.
17 January, 2012.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

The notes to the enclosed Proxy Form are incorporated in
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G. ANTHONY KING
Non-Executive Director
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C. RICHARD COZIER
Managing Director

GERVASE WARNER
(S.P. Musson Son & Co. Ltd)
Non-Executive Director

ROBERT RAMCHAND
Non-Executive Director

DIRECTORS
SIR ALLAN FIELDS K.C.M.G.
Non-Executive Chairman

(as at 06 January, 2012*)

GEORGE M C DONALD
Non-Executive Director
LUIS ALVAREZ
Non-Executive Director

DAN STOUTE
Non-Executive Director
J. ENRIQUE ORIGGI
Non-Executive Director

CHERIE JONES
Board Secretary

REGISTERED OFFICE: Wildey Main Road, Wildey,
St. Michael, Barbados

ATTORNEYS-AT-LAW: Carrington & Sealy

AUDITORS: Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants

BANKERS: CIBC FirstCaribbean International Bank
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ELVIN SEALY
Non-Executive Director

9

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

The 2011 financial year proved to be a very challenging
one for the Group’s subsidiaries which recorded a
consolidated net loss before taxation from continuing
operations of approximately $4.0 million compared to a
profit of $3.6 million in 2010. The major factor contributing
to this result was the performance of Barbados Dairy
Industries Limited which recorded a loss before taxation of
$6.5 million caused by a myriad of operational issues and
restructuring costs. The issues experienced by the Dairy
are detailed in the Managing Director’s report but I am
satisfied that the restructuring program implemented by
the Group’s senior management will result in the company
returning to profitability and contributing positively to the
growth of the Group.
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The change in profitability recorded by the subsidiaries
was reversed by the improved performance of our
associated companies. Our share of the net income
of these equity investments increased by $8.1 million
over 2010 and was primarily as a result of the change
in profitability of Citrus Products of Belize Limited due
to improved crop yields and citrus commodity prices
and the performance of Banks DIH Limited. The Guyana
economy experienced significant growth in 2011 due to
increased production of gold, bauxite and rice and the
performance of Banks DIH Limited mirrored this growth.
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While the consolidated Net Income of the Group
attributable to equity holders increased by $1.94 million
or 26%, Earnings Per Share from continuing operations
declined from 15 cents to 14 cents due to the increased
number of shares outstanding for the full year in 2011.
The Board decided to pay a reduced dividend due to
the working capital position of the Group and the cash
resources required to complete the Brewery project in the
first half of 2012. The working capital decline has resulted
from the outflow of funds previously held on deposit to
finance the equipment for the Brewery and the impact of
the losses incurred by the Dairy.
Short-term cash resources will be required in the first
quarter of 2012 to fund the severance costs associated
with the closure of the old Brewery. The new Brewery
requires a staffing level approximately two thirds that of

the old facility and the resulting savings in employment costs and other decreased operational
costs will begin to flow from the second quarter of 2012.
Capital expenditure during the year totaled $62.3 million represented principally by the
investments in plant and machinery and the building in Newton relating to the new Brewery.
Shortly after year end both the installation of the equipment and the construction work were
fully completed and by the end of the first quarter of the current financial year the Newton
Brewery was fully operational and the manufacturing activities at Wildey were discontinued.
With these two major projects substantially behind us, the Group has focused its attention on
strengthening the commercial aspects of the organization as we seek to exploit the increased
capacity offered by the recent investments.
Even in the face of challenging economic times the Group continues to be a leader in social
responsibility as we continue our support of sporting, cultural and charitable activities both on
a national level and within communities across the island. As a large manufacturer we take the
responsibility of the preservation of the environment for future generations very seriously and
recycling programs of various forms are in place at our plants and administrative facilities.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the employees of the Group for their continued hard
work and commitment and the Barbados Workers’ Union in what has been a difficult year of
transition in many of the operating entities. In closing I wish to thank our treasured customers,
shareholders and other business partners for your continued support of the BHL Group.
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Sir Allan C. Fields, K.C.M.G.
Chairman
6 January 2012
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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Consolidated Results
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The performance of the group for the financial year ended
31st August 2011 needs to be measured against the
economic environment which prevailed. Conditions in the
home market (where the vast majority of our sales are
generated) were not conducive to generous sales growth
as was evidenced by the recent Central Bank review of the
economy which lowered the estimated economic growth
estimate. The effects of a 16.7% increase in VAT coupled
with a removal of tax free allowances, reduced consumer
spending power; the reduction was also deepened by
the increased unemployment rate. Despite these negative
influences, the Group ended the year with a net profit
attributable to shareholders of $9,300,025 as compared to
$7,360,339 in 2010, an increase of $1,939,686 or 26.4%. All
but one of our operations were able to maintain or increase
their contributions to Group profits; that exception was
Barbados Dairy Industries Limited. This operation suffered
as a consequence of an upgrade project that dragged
on and compromised our abilities to maintain production
whilst still installing and commissioning equipment within
the same plant. This resulted in the requirement to work
extended hours to (a) process all raw milk received and
(b) maintain a presence in the local market for the better
selling SKUs. This latter objective was not fully achieved
and we suffered stock outs from time to time. The results
were further impacted by several large one-off charges as
the new equipment installations rendered old equipment
and spares obsolete and there were also large amounts of
severance. Further details on this operation are discussed
in the section devoted to Pine Hill.
Whilst the upgrade at the Dairy was ongoing, we also
got into full stride with the construction, installation and
commissioning of our new state-of-the-art brewery at
Newton. Unlike the Pine Hill project this is fully a greenfield
project and this allowed production and construction to
proceed in parallel. The project had a planned “1st brew
date” of early August but unfavourable weather patterns and
some regulatory delays pushed us back 3 weeks. Brewing
therefore began at the end of August and we are now fully
operational at the site; the existing brewery in Wildey is no
longer in service.

Whilst the local operations were faced with a sluggish economy and diminished disposable income
in consumers’ hands, the complete opposite was taking place in Guyana. Buoyed by dramatic
increases in gold and commodities such as rice and sugar, that economy has grown significantly.
The increased price for these commodities has put large amounts of cash in consumers’ hands and
our investment there has benefitted greatly. Sales of some SKUs have shown double digit increases
in the last couple of months; and indications are that this trend is likely to continue well into the new
financial year.
The “star performer” during the year was Citrus Products of Belize Limited (CPBL) which, for the
first time in 3 years, is reporting a profit, the result of a reasonable crop and high commodity prices.
The performance would have been even better were it not for a late season hurricane last year
that destroyed several hundred thousand boxes of fruit. The new crop season has just started
and indications are that the crop will exceed last years and with prices still holding strong, CPBL
is forecasting a profit of just over $7 million in the 2012 financial year. This is welcome news,
considering the $12 million loss last year and the $11 million in 2009.
In Nassau, our investment has performed well albeit down on last year. This is due in part to a
downturn in the economy there as well as the introduction of a tax on inputs to manufacturing.
During the year the Company completed the construction of its new facility and production has
commenced at the new site. The new facility positions this operation amongst the most technically
advanced plants in the Region and affords it the opportunity to expand its territorial reach.

BANKS (BARBADOS) BREWERIES LIMITED
2011 was a very trying year for the Brewery management and staff as the focus was split between
building a new brewery while still running the old plant and keeping the products supplied in the
right quantity and quality. Added to this were the difficulties faced in keeping morale high as the
pending reduction in employees was being negotiated with the Barbados Workers’ Union. The
construction phase of the new Brewery began early in the 2011 financial year and has followed the
planned timeline for completion with only minor delays and we were able to begin operations at the
new site in late August.

Available information indicates that other regional breweries are showing declining sales in their
markets and as a result they are employing heavy discounting of their brands in export markets.
Latest market share data however shows that we are holding on to our share but the overall beer
market is in decline. Research & Development (R&D) into alternate beverages is underway together
with an expansion in our export markets so as to maintain production volumes through the plant.
Quality
The independent quality schemes we have ongoing in the Brewery paint a picture that we have
maintained or exceeded an acceptable quality score for all our products throughout the financial
year.
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Sales Review
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Human Resources
2011 was a most difficult year for employee morale. The employment requirement for the “old”
Brewery exceeds the number required by the new Brewery and this necessitated sensitive and
considerate discussions with the workers representatives. I am pleased to report that the negotiations
were concluded within the timeframe the partners identified; in this regard I would like to use this
opportunity to thank all concerned for the level of understanding and maturity in what was not an
easy discussion. Training in the new technologies and processes of the new Brewery is and will
remain a major strategy to ensure the plant’s success.
The Future
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The first quarter of the 2012 financial year will be a difficult transition period for the Brewery. Oneoff costs are high for severance together with the added cost of temporarily running two plants
(September through November). Once this hurdle is navigated, significant cost reductions in the
operation will yield direct results to the bottom line. Needless to say, we will need to maintain a
strong focus on sales and marketing to ensure that our strategies are executed in a timely basis
and deliver the desired results. Growing market share, expanding the market and R&D are critical
objectives which will be the target. Exports and co-packing opportunities will also be high on the
agenda so as to maximize our plant utilization and some discussions on these are already underway
with interested brand owners. In this regard, negotiations for entry into the UK market are ongoing
with a planned launch date of April 2012. There are also plans to expand our “footprint” in North
America with launches in additional East Coast states during 2012.

Banks Beer being packaged on the state-of-the-art packaging line
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Aerial view of a section of the new packaging hall

BARBADOS BOTTLING CO. LIMITED
The impact of the rising costs of raw and packaging materials could not be mitigated solely by the
operational savings identified by the management team during the first quarter. Increases were seen in
areas such as energy costs (both fuel and electricity), in addition to increases in the cost of concentrate,
water, freight on all inputs imported into Barbados for manufacturing, as well as sugar and PET (material
used in the manufacturing process of the bottle). These increases forced the introduction of a price increase
on carbonated beverages during the month of April 2011.
Export volumes continue to be low; however we saw a positive growth regarding the exports of PowerAde.
This growth is as a result of BBC being identified as the regional supply point for this product within the
Coca-Cola system.

As was highlighted during last year’s financial review, we were aiming to commission our Waste Water
Treatment Plant during the month of November 2010. I am pleased to announce that we did meet our
expected time line and that the plant is now treating 100% of our waste water streams. Our continued
work with the EPD (Environmental Protection Department) seeks to ensure our continued compliance to
all local regulations, the results of which are evident by the ability of the Waste Water Treatment Plant’s
effluent to sustain aquatic life.
Operationally the performance of the plant continues to improve, with the realization being seen in better
operating efficiencies across our range of packaging options. The result of these improvements is due
to our continued commitment to building a structure that lends itself to clear lines of responsibility and
accountability, coupled with the use of objective performance metrics to drive continuous improvement.
Quality Systems
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Operations

During the year, BBC received its first surveillance audit for the four ISO standards it received back in 2010;
•  ISO 9001:2008 (Quality Systems Management)
•  ISO 22001:2005 (Food Safety Management )
•  ISO 14001:2004 (Environmental Management)
•  OSHAS 18001:2007 (Employee Health & Safety Management)
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This surveillance audit was conducted by BSI (British Standards institution) during the month of May
2011 and at the end of this audit the company was successful in retaining its certification in all four
standards.

B&B DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
Distribution costs rose during the year as fuel prices increased, we were therefore forced to increase
prices to address this. As of writing this report, there are indications that oil prices will at best retain
their current price level or increase in the coming months. Fuel and vehicle expenditure costs are
significant contributors to our total operational costs and our ability to absorb increases in either is
limited.
As indicated last year, the roll out of the improved customer sales procedure was completed during
the year and, although there are still areas where improvement is required, there has been some
improvement in the overall transaction efficiency.
The plan to establish a “cashless delivery system” continues to be a work in progress as some initial
testing among our smaller customer base did not result in overwhelming support for the solution.
We will continue to work on the elements that did receive support and hope to be able put these into
operation during the new financial year.
We are also continuing our efforts to improve our interaction with our primary customers (the
traditional grocery), during the year we increased the marketing funds available to this category with
encouraging results. We will continue to work on this in the new year and build on the successes
attained in 2011.
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Shortly after the end of the financial year we added the beer brand Presidente to our portfolio.
This brand owner has acquired the breweries in Antigua, Dominica and St. Vincent, and has
identified Barbados, Trinidad and Jamaica as markets to be targeted by the brand. We believe
that the International status of the brand offers us an opportunity to market to those consumers
who consume only imported product. Early indications are that this is taking shape as the volumes
generated by the brand have not resulted in reductions of the Banks Beer brand.
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BARBADOS DAIRY INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Sales
Sales quantities across all categories fell short of prior year principally as a result of our inability to
consistently supply the markets. Sales of evaporated milks as well as TGA juices were most severely
affected recording significant declines.
White milk sales rebounded somewhat during the year to finish 10% up on prior year signalling
improved acceptance of the ultra-pasteurized milks.
At the beginning of the year, a decision to discontinue certain flavours in the 1L TBA package was
taken. Unfortunately, the expected transition of volume from that package to the 1L TGA package
never materialized and significant lost sales were recorded especially in the export markets forcing
the reintroduction of those flavours by the end of the first half of the year.

During the second half, we decided to revert to the PINEHILL brand (and discontinue the use of the
Caribbean Pride brand) for all TGA juices and at the time of writing this report, all but two flavours
had been transitioned. Initial feedback from the trade has been exceedingly positive and it is clear
that the PINEHILL brand continues to hold significant equity with consumers both locally as well as
in the export markets.
Cultured product sales were flat on prior year, considerable process improvements have been made
to the yogurt plant and we expect to see growth in this area as we develop new flavours and
reintroduce fresh cream in the new financial year.
Operations
The amalgamation of the plants is complete and final commissioning issues are ongoing.
Commissioning of the new TGA (gable top) filling line has also been completed and efficiencies
continue to approach those initially projected.
The “old” UHT plant area has been converted into a state-of-the-art finished goods warehouse with
new robotic palletizing and “flow” racking capabilities. The transition from wooden to plastic pallets
has also been completed and work has begun on the expansion of the raw and packaging materials
storage facility.
During the year, we were forced to switch our supply point for milk powder and as a result suffered
quality issues associated with the stability of the new imported powder. This, coupled with logistical
difficulties with the handling of the powder contained in the new “super sacks” challenged our ability
to reliably supply the market with reconstituted milk products. We are pleased to report that this
issue is now resolved.
Farms

Quality Systems
Our Integrated Management System has been streamlined and we have appointed an Environmental,
Health and Safety Officer. PHD has embarked upon its “Greening Campaign” and has initiated
recycling of all plastics, cardboard and metals generated as a result of its operations. Additionally,
we have established a “Recycling Centre” which enables staff members to bring suitable materials
from home for recycling.
We have targeted May 2013 as the date for us to gain certification in the following four International
Quality Standards:
•
•

ISO 9001:2008 (Quality Systems Management)
ISO 22001:2005 (Food Safety Management)
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We continue to work closely with our dairy farmers to ensure the highest possible quality of milk. We
suspended the milk quota system in July 2011 and have, since then, been paying full price for all
milk, irrespective of its destination. It is hoped that this move will incentivize farmers to increase their
milk production allowing us to expand our range of milk-based products. During the new financial
year we will be meeting with them to discuss the future of the quota system and an equitable formula
for the purchase of raw milk.
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•
•

ISO 14001:2004 (Environmental Management)
OSHAS 18001:2007 (Employee Health & Safety Management)

Human Resources
As suggested above, the second half of the year saw significant changes being made to the
organizational structure, management and operational teams as well as operational processes and
procedures. We would like to take this opportunity to commend all staff on the level of maturity
displayed during this period of volatility. We are convinced that as we enter the new financial year with
the new team in place, the dedication and commitment to excellence that has been demonstrated
will begin to deliver positive results.
We continue to enjoy a cordial relationship with our employees’ representative, the Barbados
Workers’ Union and concluded negotiations for a new 2 year collective agreement towards the end
of the final quarter.
The Future
Our strategies, over the next year are geared towards returning Pine Hill to profitability and we will
focus our efforts not only on cost containment and efficiency improvement within the production
plant but more importantly on regaining the confidence of our local and regional customers and
consumers.
We will continue to grow the PINEHILL brand as one that can be relied upon for quality and
consistency and have several new product offerings in the developmental pipeline, scheduled for
rollout during the coming year. As the plant has ramped up production, we have rekindled our export
thrust and at the time of preparing this report had shipped the first containers to our new partners
in the Trinidad market. We successfully hosted a regional distributors’ conference in Barbados
in November and will follow this up by visits to each market as we roll out individually tailored
commercial programmes.
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We will also be seeking to fill vacant plant capacity and we have identified potential regional copacking opportunities and are gearing up our plant to meet the stringent requirements.
We are confident that with the new Dairy Team on board, our new distribution structure, imminent
completion of the project and renewed focus on exports, the year ahead, while not being without its
challenges, will see the Company returning to the levels of profitability delivered in the past.

C. R. Cozier, F.C.G.A.
Managing Director / CEO
6 January 2012
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Directors’ Report
The Directors hereby submit their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 August 2011.

		
2.
The consolidated net income for the year attributable to parent was
Which is added to the retained earnings brought forward of
Less dividend paid (12¢ per share)
		
Giving retained earnings carried forward of
		

$

9,300,025
120,026,125
(7,782,451)
121,543,699

3

A dividend of 9¢ per share for the financial year ending 31 August 2011 was declared by the Board of Directors
on 23 November 2011 and paid on the 19 December 2011. Shareholders on record on the 5 December 2011
were entitled to receive the dividend. This dividend will be accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings
in the year ending 2012.

4.

In accordance with Clause 4.4 of the Company’s By-Laws, the following Directors cease to hold office at the end of
this Annual Meeting but are eligible for re-election for a period of three (3) years:
S.P Musson Son & Co Ltd.
Mr. Joaquin Enrique Origgi

5.

Mr. George Gladstone Daniel McDonald
Sir Allan Fields

According to the Company’s register, the interests of persons who were Directors as at the close of business on 31
August 2011, and at 16 January 2012 respectively are as follows:

			
Name
S.P. Musson Son & Co. Ltd.
Robert Ramchand
Carl Richard Cozier
Dan Stoute
Sir Allan Fields
G. Anthony King
Elvin Sealy
George McDonald
J. Enrique Origgi
Luis Alvarez

No. of Shares at
31.8.11

No. of Shares at
16.1.12

1,925,000
55,361
48,537
45,920
33,569
15,499
2,632

1,925,000
61,473
48,537
48,003
33,569
15,499
2,632

-

-

6.

There have been changes in the Director’s interests occurring between the end of the Company’s financial year and
close of business on the date immediately preceding the date of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting as outlined
at Item 5 above.

7.

Interest of persons other than Directors holding more than 5% of the issued shares in the Company are as follows:

(i)

Interests of persons other than Directors holding more than 5% of the issued shares as at 31 August 2011 were as
follows:
Name
SLU BEVERAGES LTD.
THE BARBADOS SHIPPING AND TRADING CO. LTD.
BWPL HOLDINGS LTD.
SAGICOR FINANCIAL CORPORATION
BANKS DIH LIMITED

(ii)

Percentage

13,250,000
10,982,292
7,619,211
4,349,106
4,343,415

20.43%
16.93%
11.75%
6.71%
6.70%

Interests of persons other than Directors holding more than 5% of the issued shares as at 16 January 2011 were as
follows:
Name
SLU BEVERAGES LTD.
THE BARBADOS SHIPPING AND TRADING CO. LTD.
BWPL HOLDINGS LTD.
SAGICOR FINANCIAL CORPORATION
BANKS DIH LIMITED

8.

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Percentage

13,250,000
10,982,292
7,620,651
4,349,106
4,343,415

20.43%
16.93%
11.75%
6.71%
6.70%

The retiring auditors, Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, offer themselves for re-appointment.
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1.

By Order of the Board

Cherie S.A. Jones
Corporate Secretary
17 January 2012
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of Banks Holdings Limited
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Banks Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (‘the Group’), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 August
2011 and the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
As indicated in Note 3(i) to the financial statements, the Group does not provide for depreciation on its
freehold buildings. In our opinion, this is not in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,
which require that buildings be depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Had the Group accounted
for depreciation using the straight-line method at an annual rate of 2.5%, the net income would have been
reduced by $1,034,819 (2010 - $1,047,743) and property, plant and equipment would have been reduced
by accumulated depreciation of $1,179,565 (2010 - $1,994,202) and retained earnings by the same amount.
Revaluation surplus would have decreased by $902,997.
Opinion
In our opinion, except for the effects of the failure to record depreciation on freehold buildings as stated in
the preceding paragraph, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as of 31 August 2011, and its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Barbados
6 January 2012

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Income
Year ended 31 August 2011

Notes
2011
2010
		
$
$
Continuing operations
4

177,325,264

184,044,818

(Loss) profit from continuing
operations before undernoted items
4
Change in fair value of investment properties
13
Interest income		
Interest expense		
Unrealised loss on short-term investments		

(1,750,752)
157,660
(2,203,345)
(198,750)

4,662,604
300,000
40,323
(1,271,206)
(107,550)

(Loss) income from continuing operations
– parent and subsidiaries		
Share of income of associated companies		

(3,995,187)
11,096,287

3,624,171
2,985,291

Income before taxation from continuing operations		7,101,100
Taxation
5
1,207,539

6,609,462
1,415,634

Net income for the year from continuing operations		8,308,639

8,025,096

Revenue

Discontinued operations
Income (loss) for the year from discontinued operations

28

276

(569,341)

Net income for the year		
8,308,915
7,455,755
		
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent		
Non-controlling interests		

9,300,025
(991,110)

7,360,339
95,416
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8,308,915
7,455,755
		

Earnings per share
22
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to equity holders of the parent 		
14¢
14¢
		
Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing
operations attributable to equity holders of the parent 		
14¢
15¢
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 August 2011

		
Notes
			

2011
$

2010
$

8,308,915
7,455,755
Net income for the year		
		
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of land and buildings		
Share of revaluation surplus and fair value reserve of
associated companies		
Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year, net of tax		

(11,704,139)

-

25,966

23,286

(11,678,173)

23,286

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year, net of tax		
(3,369,258)
7,479,041
		
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent		
Non-controlling interests		

(2,378,148)
(991,110)

7,383,625
95,416

		
(3,369,258)
7,479,041
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As of 31 August 2011
			
Notes
2011
2010
		$
$
Current assets
Cash and short-term deposits
6
16,972,419
51,296,676
Accounts receivable and prepayments
7
15,947,035
19,076,121
Taxation recoverable		
22,103
2,089
Inventories
8
38,190,551
34,104,489
Short-term investments		
495,003
693,753
Current portion of loans receivable
10
16,447
		
71,627,111
105,189,575
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft
6
Accounts payable and accruals
9
Grant
17
Provision for deposits owed to customers		
Current portion of long-term liabilities
18

7,883,566
29,031,672
59,700
560,370
11,741,911

1,437,623
18,692,159
39,800
770,474
7,541,958

		
49,277,219
28,482,014
Working capital 		
22,349,892
76,707,561
Investments in associated companies
11
102,010,783
92,459,934
Property, plant and equipment
12
180,695,855
144,812,390
Investment properties
13
13,800,000
13,800,000
Intangible assets
14
578,962
578,962
Pension plan asset
15
5,734,701
6,382,408
Post-employment medical liability
16
(2,001,789)
(1,874,764)
Deferred tax
5
8,682,615
7,475,076
Grant
17
(497,500)
(557,200)
Long-term liabilities
18
(24,859,897)
(22,274,800)

Equity
Share capital
19
Capital reserves
20
Retained earnings		

146,126,846
30,392,053
121,543,699

145,991,082
42,070,226
120,026,125

Attributable to equity holders of the parent		
298,062,598
Non-controlling interests		
8,431,024

308,087,433
9,422,134

Total equity		
306,493,622
317,509,567
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
Approved by the Board on 6 January 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

.............................................................Chairman
Sir Allan Fields, K.C.M.G.

.............................................................Director
C. R. A. Cozier, F.C.G.A.
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23,286

-

-

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income

---------------------------------------------Total comprehensive income

23,286

42,070,226
(11,678,173)

54,093,394

145,991,082

-

-

---------------------------------------------Total transactions with shareholders

---------------------------------------------Balance as of 31 August 2010

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive loss

---------------------------------------------Total comprehensive loss

7,455,755
23,286

263,273,591

7,360,339

7,383,625

95,416

Total
equity
$

7,479,041

(7,220,822)
-

53,097,782
112,430
883,182
(7,220,822)
-

(115,637)

53,097,782
112,430
883,182
(7,220,822)
(115,637)

-

(7,220,822)

46,872,572

(115,637)

46,756,935

9,300,025
(11,678,173)

308,087,433

(991,110)
-

9,422,134

8,308,915
(11,678,173)

317,509,567

9,300,025

(2,378,148)

(991,110)

(3,369,258)
-

(7,782,451)

65,650
52,173
17,941
(7,782,451)

-

65,650
52,173
17,941
(7,782,451)

135,764

-

(7,782,451)

(7,646,687)

-

(7,646,687)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

65,650
52,173
17,941
-

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(11,678,173)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

9,300,025
-

120,026,125

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------146,126,846
30,392,053
121,543,699
298,062,598
8,431,024
306,493,622
===============================================================================

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Balance as of 31 August 2011

95,416
-

9,442,355

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-

53,097,782
112,430
883,182
-

---------------------------------------------Total transactions with shareholders

7,360,339
23,286

253,831,236

Non-controlling
interests
$

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Transactions with shareholders:
Issue of share capital
Share-based payment
Equity component of convertible promissory notes
Dividend paid (14.0¢ per share)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests

---------------------------------------------Transactions with shareholders:
Shares subscribed
Share-based payment
Equity component of convertible promissory notes
Dividend paid (12.0¢ per share)

7,360,339
-

119,886,608

Retained		
earnings
Total
$
$

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

42,046,940

91,897,688

Balance as of 31 August 2009

Capital
reserves
$

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share
capital
$

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 August 2011

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 August 2011
		
		2011
2010
		
$
$
Cash flows from operating activities
Income before taxation		
7,101,100
6,609,462
Income (loss) before taxation from discontinued operations		
276
(569,341)

14,296,197
(300,000)
49,999
(147,493)
563,640
107,550
112,430
(40,323)
1,271,206
261,582
(456,916)
(2,985,291)

Operating profit before working capital changes		13,394,595
Decrease in accounts receivable and prepayments		
3,129,086
(Increase) decrease in inventories		
(4,086,062)
Increase in accounts payable and accruals		
10,339,513
(Decrease) increase in provision for deposits owed to customers		
(210,104)

18,772,702
299,876
1,575,892
3,510,706
90,089

Cash generated from operations		
Corporation taxes paid		
Interest received		
Interest paid		

22,567,028
(20,013)
157,660
(2,203,345)

24,249,265
(25,521)
40,323
(1,271,206)

Net cash from operating activities		

20,501,330

22,992,861

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
Dividends received from associated companies		
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 		
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale		
Decrease in loans receivable		
Redemption (purchase) of short-term deposits

(62,257,762)
1,571,403
312,192
16,447
35,001,578

(34,025,889)
2,107,342
1,281,271
500,000
25,905
(35,001,578)

Net cash used in investing activities		

(25,356,142)

(65,112,949)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from shares issued		
Proceeds from shares subscribed		
Payment of dividend		
Receipt of grant		
Dividend paid to minority shareholders		
Net proceeds of long-term liabilities		

65,650
(7,782,451)
6,802,991

53,097,782
(7,220,822)
597,000
(115,636)
15,307,214

Net cash (used in) from financing activities		

(913,810)

61,665,538

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents		
(5,768,622)
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year		14,857,475

19,545,450
(4,687,975)

Cash and cash equivalents – end of year (Note 6)

14,857,475

9,088,853

6,040,121

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Income before taxation		
7,101,376
Adjustments for:
Depreciation		13,640,191
Change in fair value of investment properties		
Impairment of short-term investments		
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
717,775
Loss on disposal of assets held for sale		
Unrealized loss on short-term investments		
198,750
Share-based payment		
52,173
Interest income		
(157,660)
Interest expense		
2,203,345
Post-employment medical liability		
127,025
Pension plan asset		
647,707
Income from grant		
(39,800)
Share of income of associated companies		
(11,096,287)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
1.

Incorporation and principal activities
The Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are incorporated in Barbados.
The principal activities of the Group are the brewing and bottling of alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages,
the manufacturing of carbonated and non-carbonated beverages, the manufacturing and processing of
dairy products and fruit juices, and the sale of finished products. As the Group is primarily involved in the
manufacturing and sale of beverages, there are no distinguishable business segments for segment reporting
purposes.
The registered office is Wildey Main Road, Wildey, St. Michael, Barbados.

2.

Subsidiary and associated companies
a]

		
		
		
		
		
		
b]
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
3.

Subsidiary companies
Banks (Barbados) Breweries Limited
Barbados Bottling Co. Limited
B & B Distribution Limited
Duraplast Incorporated
Barbados Dairy Industries Limited
Plastic Containers Limited

(100% ownership)
(100% ownership)
(100% ownership)
(100% ownership)
(83.7% ownership)
(65% ownership)

Associated companies
Citrus Products of Belize Limited
Chemical Industries Limited
GCG Services Limited
Caribco Limited
Newtech Incorporated
BCL (Barbados) Limited
Tower Hill Merchants Plc
BCB Communications Inc.
Banks DIH Limited

(46.58% ownership)
(40% ownership)
(33.33% ownership)
(30% ownership)
(26.2% ownership)
(25% ownership)
(29.36% ownership)
(20% ownership)
(20% ownership)

Significant accounting policies
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The most significant policies are summarized below:
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a] Basis of accounting and financial statement preparation
		The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for land and buildings,
investment property and short-term investments, which are carried at fair value. The financial statements
are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
b] Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
adoption of the following standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective in the current
year:
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions (effective 1
January 2010)
IFRS 2 has been amended to clarify the accounting for group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, where a subsidiary receives goods or services from employees or suppliers but the parent
or another entity in the group pays for those goods or services. The amendments clarify that the scope
of IFRS 2 includes such transactions. This amendment is applied retrospectively, in accordance with IAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors in respect of changes in accounting
policy. For group reporting and consolidated financial statements, the amendment clarifies that if an entity
receives goods or services that are cash settled by shareholders not within the group, they are outside the
scope of IFRS 2. The adoption of this amendment did not have any impact on the financial position of the
Group.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
b] Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (cont’d)
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation – Classification of Rights Issues (effective 1 February 2010)
The amendment to IAS 32 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010 and amended
the definition of a financial liability in order to classify rights issues (and certain options or warrants) as equity
instruments in cases where such rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners of the same class
of an entity’s non-derivative equity instruments, or to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments for a fixed amount in any currency. This amendment will have no impact on the Group.
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective 1 July 2010)
This interpretation clarifies that equity instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish a financial liability
qualify as consideration paid. The equity instruments issued are measured at their fair value. In case this
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at the fair value of the liability extinguished. Any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The adoption of this interpretation will have no effect on the
financial statements of the Group.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2010)
The terms of a liability that could at anytime result in its settlement by the issuance of equity instruments at
the option of the counterparty do not affect its classification. The adoption of this standard had no effect
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (effective 1 January 2010)
Only expenditure that results in a recognized asset can be classified as a cash flow from investing activities.
The adoption of this standard had no effect on the financial position or performance of the Group.
IAS 17 Leases (effective 1 January 2010)
The specific guidance on classifying land as a lease has been removed so that only the general guidance
remains. The adoption of this standard had no impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (effective 1 January 2010)
The largest unit permitted for allocating goodwill acquired in a business combination is the operating
segment defined in IFRS 8 before aggregation for reporting purposes. The adoption of this standard had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Assessment of loan prepayment penalties
as embedded derivatives (effective 1 January 2010)
A prepayment option is considered closely related to the host contract when the exercise price reimburses
the lender up to the approximate present value of lost interest for the remaining term of the host contract.
The adoption of this standard had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
Scope exemption for business combination contract: The scope exemption for contracts between an
acquirer and a vendor in a business combination to buy or sell an acquiree at a future date applies only
to binding forward contracts, not derivative contracts where further actions are still to be taken. This is
effective prospectively to all unexpired contracts for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
The adoption of this standard had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
Cash flow hedge accounting: Gains or losses on cash flow hedges of a forecast transaction that
subsequently results in the recognition of a financial instrument or on cash flow hedges or recognized
financial instruments should be reclassified in the period that the hedged forecast cash flows affect profit
or loss. This is effective prospectively to all unexpired contracts for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010. The adoption of this standard had no impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
b] Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (cont’d)
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (effective 1 January 2010)
This amendment clarifies that the disclosures required in respect of non-current assets (or disposal groups)
classified as held for sale or discontinued operations are only those set out in IFRS 5. The adoption of this
standard had no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effective 1 January 2010)
Segment assets and liabilities need only be reported when those assets and liabilities are included in
measures used by the chief operating decision maker. The adoption of this standard had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not adopted
The Group has not adopted the following new and revised IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations that have been
issued as these standards/interpretations do not apply to the activities of the Group:
IFRS 1
IFRS 1

First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
– Additional Exemptions for First–time Adopters (Amendments)
(effective 1 January 2010)
First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
– Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters (effective 1 July 2010)

c] Standards issued but not yet effective
The following is a list of standards and interpretations issued that are not yet effective up to the date
of issuance of the Group’s financial statements. The Group reasonably expects these standards and
interpretations to be applicable at a future date and intends to adopt these standards and interpretations
when they become effective:
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• IAS 12 Income Taxes- Recovery of Underlying Assets
• IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Amendment)
• IFRS 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (Amendment) – Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
• IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Amendment)
In May 2010, the International Accounting Standards Board issued “Improvements to IFRSs”, which is part
of its annual improvements project, and a vehicle for making non-urgent but necessary amendments to
various IFRSs. These amendments primarily become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010 or 1 January 2011. The following shows the IFRSs and topics addressed by these amendments:
•
•
•
•
•
•

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The Group, however, expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or
performance.
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
d]

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries, as disclosed in Note 2. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. All inter-company balances
and transactions, including unrealized profits from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Non-controlling interests represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly
or indirectly, by the Group and are presented separately in the statement of income, statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separate from
shareholders’ equity.

e]

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the
buyer and the amount of revenue can be readily measured. Interest income is recognized on the accrual
basis.

f]

Currency
The financial statements are expressed in Barbados dollars, which is also its functional currency.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Barbados dollars are translated at the
rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities and
transactions denominated in currencies other than Barbados dollars are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses are charged to the statement of
income.

g]

Taxation
The Group follows the liability method of accounting for taxation, whereby the future tax asset or liability
resulting from temporary differences is provided for at the estimated future corporation tax rate that is
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability settled. Deferred tax assets in
respect of unused tax losses are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilized.

h]

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. Work-in-progress and finished goods comprise the direct cost of production and an
attributable proportion of direct overheads appropriate to location and condition.
Spares and supplies are valued at cost. Provisions are made for obsolete, slow moving and defective items
as considered appropriate in the circumstances.
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
i]

Property, plant and equipment
No depreciation is provided on freehold buildings. This practice is not in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, which require that buildings be depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. The provision for the year ended 31 August 2011 would be $1,034,819 (2010-$1,047,743) based
on the straight-line method of depreciation using an annual rate of 2.5% per annum and the accumulated
depreciation would be $1,179,565 (2010 - $1,994,202).
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is made using the straight-line method over the useful lives
of the assets which are estimated as follows:

		
		
		
		
		

Leasehold buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and other equipment
Motor vehicles
Containers

20, 33 1/3 and 50 years
3 to 20 years
3 to 10 years
5 years
3 to 10 years

Land and buildings are revalued every five years on the basis of their market value which is determined by
independent real estate appraisers.
j]

Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination
over the fair value of the Group’s share of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the cash generating units expected
to benefit from the combination’s synergies. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit, to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized.
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k]

Investments in associated companies
Investments, where the Group has significant influence, are classified as associated companies and are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The investment in associated companies is carried
in the statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associates, less any impairment in value. The statement of income reflects the share of the
results of operations of the associates. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist.

l]

Provision for deposits owed to customers
The quantity of containers in customers’ possession, on which the provision for deposits is based, is
estimated by management, having regard to the level of sales and the turnaround of containers.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
m] Short-term investments
Short-term investments are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of consideration given, and
include acquisition charges associated with the investment. After initial recognition, investments, which
have been classified as at fair value through profit and loss, are recorded at their fair value. The fair value
of listed investments is their quoted market price at the statement of financial position date. Privately held
investments, in the absence of readily ascertainable market values, have been estimated by management
on the basis of recent trades of similar investments. Unrealized gains or losses are recorded in the statement
of income.
The values assigned to the investments are based on available information and do not necessarily represent
the amounts that might ultimately be realized, since such amounts depend on future circumstances and
cannot be determined until the investments are actually liquidated. Because of the inherent uncertainties
of valuation, the assigned values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a
ready market for the investments existed, and the difference could be material.
n]

Employee retirement benefits
The Group operates defined benefit pension plans, the assets of which are held in a separate fund
administered independently by a Trustee. The pension plans are funded by payments from employees
and the relevant Group companies, taking into account the recommendations of independent qualified
actuaries.
The pension accounting costs are accrued using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the
cost of providing pensions is charged to the statement of income so as to spread the regular cost over
the service lives of the employees in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries who
carry out a full valuation of the plans every three years. The pension obligation is measured as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows using interest rates of Government Securities which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Actuarial gains and losses are spread forward over
the average remaining service lives of employees.
The Group also operates defined contribution pension plans. Contributions to these plans are charged to
the statement of income in the year to which the contributions are made.
The Group also provides post-employment healthcare benefits to its employees, pensioners and their
registered dependants. These benefits are funded by contributions from relevant group companies. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment, using a methodology similar
to that for defined benefit pension plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to income over the expected average service
lives of the related employees. These obligations are valued by independent qualified actuaries.

o]

Leases
Finance leases are capitalized at fair value on inception of the lease agreement. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against
income. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged against income on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

p]

Interest bearing loans receivable and payable
All interest bearing loans receivable and payable are initially recognized at cost. After initial recognition,
they are measured at amortized cost.

q]

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits net of bank
overdrafts.
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BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
r]

Grants
Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to
income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. Where the Company receives
non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and released to the
statement of income over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

s]

Convertible promissory notes
Convertible promissory notes are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of
the contract. On issuance of the convertible promissory notes, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is classified as a
financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is
not remeasured in subsequent years.

t]

Investment properties
Properties that are held by the Group to earn third party rental income and/or for capital appreciation are
classified as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transactions costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
statement of financial position date. Transfers are made to investment property when there is a change in
use, evidenced by ending of owner-occupation.
Gains and losses arising from the changes in fair values of investment properties are included in the
statement of income in the year in which they arise. Fair values are based on the Directors’ valuations taking
into consideration asset replacement costs and land tax valuations, and valuations of similar properties.
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Share-based payment transactions
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (‘equitysettled transactions’).
Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date on which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in Note 19. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the company, if
applicable.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on
which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘the vesting date’).
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of income charge or credit for a
period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that
period.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
u]

Share-based payment transactions (cont’d)
No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the expense
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense
is recognized for any modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
arrangement or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution
in the computation of earnings per share.

v]

Impairment of financial assets			
The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognized in income.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in income.
In relation to loans and receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The
carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced through use of an allowance account.

w] Impairment of other non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset maybe impaired. If
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
w] Impairment of other non-financial assets (cont’d)
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in income unless the asset is carried at revalued
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
x]

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the aquisition, construction or production of an asset that neccesarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost
of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

y]

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
asset or liability affected in the future.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
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Operating lease commitments
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group determines whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at each
reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Further details are disclosed in Note 14.
Impairment of financial assets
When the fair value declines or when there is objective evidence of impairment, management makes
assumptions about the declines in value to determine whether it is an impairment that should be recognized
in the statement of income.
Fair value of unquoted equity instruments
Where the fair value of financial assets recorded on the statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined by management on the basis of recent trades of the same
instrument.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
3.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d)
y]

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (cont’d)
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Employee retirement benefits		
The cost of the defined benefit pension plan and other post-employment medical benefits is determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates,
expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, future pension increases, proportion of
employees opting for early retirement, and future increases in the NIS ceiling. Due to the long-term nature
of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Assumptions used are disclosed in
Notes 15 and 16.
Share-based payments
The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date which they are granted. Estimating fair value requires determining the
most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.
The assumptions and models used are disclosed in Note 19.

4.

Profit from operations

		
			
Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
Selling, general and administrative expenses

2011
$

2010
$

177,325,264
(131,581,860)

184,044,818
(131,434,159)

45,743,404
1,770,310
(49,264,466)

52,610,659
1,617,587
(49,565,642)

Profit from operations is after charging:
			
			

2011
$

2010
$
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(Loss) profit from operations
(1,750,752)
4,662,604
		

Depreciation
13,640,191
14,296,197
		
Staff costs
41,835,417
40,865,377
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5.
Taxation
			
			
Statement of income
The taxation credit on net income consists of:
Deferred tax recovery for the year
Over-provision of prior year deferred tax
			
			
			

2011
$

2010
$

(1,207,539)
-

(1,640,069)
224,435

(1,207,539)

(1,415,634)

The tax on the income before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic
corporation tax rate as follows:
			
			
2011
2010
			
$
$
(Loss) income before taxation – parent and subsidiaries
Income (loss) before taxation from discontinued operations
			
			
			
Taxed at statutory rates of 15% and 25%
(2010 – 15% and 25%)
Tax effect of capital allowances
Other
Losses expired
Over-provision of prior year deferred tax
Losses not recognized for deferred tax
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Deferred tax recovery reported in the consolidated
		 statement of income
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Deferred tax asset
Balance – beginning of year
Deferred tax recovery for the year
Over-provision of prior year
			
Balance – end of year
			

(3,995,187)
276

3,624,171
(569,341)

(3,994,911)

3,054,830

(986,913)
(1,819,629)
299,913
29,874
1,269,216

6,246
(2,120,141)
466,625
7,201
224,435
-

(1,207,539)

(1,415,634)

2011
$

2010
$

(1,207,539)

(1,415,634)

2011
$

2010
$

7,475,076
1,207,539
-

6,059,442
1,640,069
(224,435)

8,682,615

7,475,076

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
Taxation (cont’d)

			
			
Deferred tax asset is made up as follows:
Unutilized tax losses
Accelerated depreciation for income tax purposes
Pension asset
Provision for bad debts
Post-employment medical benefits
			
			
			
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
Deferred tax asset – continuing operations
			
Balance – end of year
			

2011
$

2010
$

8,293,745
722,247
(882,733)
152,113
397,243

6,202,634
1,787,190
(1,038,891)
152,113
372,030

8,682,615

7,475,076

8,682,615

7,475,076

8,682,615

7,475,076

Tax losses totaling $57,845,972 (2010 – $38,498,381) are available to be carried forward by certain subsidiaries
and offset against future taxable income of those companies. The losses have not been agreed with the
Commissioner of Inland Revenue but they are not in dispute. The losses and their expiry dates are as follows:
		Income year
			
		
		2003
		2004
		2005
		2006
		2007
		2008
		2009
		2010
		2011
			
			
			

Amount
$

Expiry date

187,402
1,215,544
3,544,484
3,576,113
3,423,710
6,516,059
4,349,416
15,435,827
19,597,417

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

57,845,972

There is a potential deferred tax asset of $1,269,216 which has not been recognized since it is uncertain that
taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized.
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6.

Cash, short-term deposits and bank overdraft
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are made up as follows:

			
			
Cash
Short-term deposits
		
			

2011
$

2010
$

1,903,426
15,068,993

8,693,521
42,603,155

16,972,419

51,296,676

Short-term deposits maturing > 3 months
(35,001,578)
Bank overdraft
(7,883,566)
(1,437,623)
		
			
9,088,853
14,857,475
		
Bank overdraft
The security for the overdraft facilities of the Group is disclosed in Note 18. Interest was charged at rates
between 8.05% and 9.05% (2010 – between 8.05% and 9.05%).
Short-term deposits
The short-term deposits have maturity dates varying between one month and two months and earn interest at
the respective short-term deposit rates ranging from 0.10% and 0.30%.
7.
Accounts receivable and prepayments
			
			
Trade receivables
Other receivables and prepayments

2011
$

2010
$

11,878,945
4,068,090

14,968,255
4,107,866

			
15,947,035
19,076,121
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Gross trade receivables
Provision for doubtful debts

2011
$

2010
$

12,679,029
(800,084)

15,864,169
(895,914)

Trade receivables (net)
11,878,945
14,968,255
		
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30-60 days terms.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
7.

Accounts receivable and prepayments (cont’d)

As at 31 August 2011, trade receivables at a nominal value of $800,084 (2010 - $895,914) were impaired and
fully provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment of receivables were as follows:
					
			
Total
				
$

At 31 August 2009		
716,798
Charge for the year		
289,491
Write-offs		
(110,375)
		
At 31 August 2010		
895,914
Charge for the year		
222,826
Write-offs		
(318,656)
		
At 31 August 2011		
800,084
		
As at 31 August 2011, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
			
		
				
				
			Total
			
$
2011
2010

11,878,945
14,968,255

Past due but not impaired
Neither past
due nor
impaired
$

<30
days
$

30-60
days
$

60-90
days
$

>90
days
$

11,006,800
11,547,632

228,537
1,000,996

347,012
1,224,933

34,474
305,467

262,122
889,227

8.
Inventory
			
			
Raw materials
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Sundry materials
Spare parts, fuel and factory supplies

2011
$

2010
$

19,731,866
10,424,149
1,234,406
314,728
6,485,402

15,234,542
8,817,193
817,366
560,248
8,675,140
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With respect to trade receivables that are neither impaired nor past due, there are no indications as of the
reporting date that the debtors will not meet their payment obligations since the Group trades only with
recognized creditworthy third parties. With respect to other receivables and prepayments an amount of $129,552
(2010 - $67,176) has been provided for in respect of a non-trade receivable balance.

			
38,190,551
34,104,489
		
The amount of write-down of inventories recognized as an expense is $5,666,598 (2010 – $2,868,079). This
expense is included in cost of sales as disclosed in Note 4.
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9.

Accounts payable and accruals

			
			
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

2011
$

2010
$

15,232,107
13,799,565

12,675,475
6,016,684

			
29,031,672
18,692,159
		
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities
• Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60 day terms.
• Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average of three to six months.
10.
Loans receivable
			
			
Loans to farmers
Less: Current portion

2011
$

2010
$

-

16,447
(16,447)

Long-term portion
		
These loans were mainly secured advances to farmers for the purchase of equipment. Interest on the loans was
being charged at the commercial banks’ prime rate plus 1/2% per annum. Interest was charged at the rate of
9.15% (2010 - 9.15%). The loans were fully repaid during the year.
11.
Investments in associated companies
			
			
Cost of investments
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Increase in equity value over cost from acquisition
		 to end of year
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2011
$

2010
$

68,514,761

68,514,761

33,496,022

23,945,173

			
102,010,783
92,459,934
		
The following illustrates summarized financial information of the Group’s share of associated companies:
				
			
2011
2010
			
$
$

Assets
217,437,008
194,704,179
		
Liabilities
113,785,853
101,300,659
		
Revenue
138,540,919
129,692,024
		
Profit
11,096,287
2,985,291
		

Banks DIH Limited is traded on the Guyana Stock Exchange and the Group’s investment had a fair value of
$24,022,154 (2010 - $20,018,462) based on the closing price at year end.
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12. Property, plant and equipment
		
At 31 August					
At 31 August
2010
Additions
Disposals
Transfers Revaluations
2011
$
$
$
$
$
$
Cost or valuation
Freehold land
23,390,288
23,390,288
Freehold buildings
41,909,716
(11,704,139)
30,205,577
Buildings on leasehold land
16,591,487
555,409
1,950,130
19,097,026
Plant and machinery
101,336,157
7,121,043
(4,954,909)
13,253,041
116,755,332
Furniture, fittings and
other equipment
14,305,540
381,975
(182,755)
(28,033)
14,476,727
Motor vehicles
7,462,468
763,793
(1,136,450)
7,089,811
Containers
16,936,523
3,543,721
20,480,244
Capital works in progress
26,939,221
49,891,821
(156,857)
(15,175,138)
61,499,047
--- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------248,871,400
62,257,762
(6,430,971)
(11,704,139)
292,994,052
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Accumulated depreciation
Buildings on leasehold land
8,793,817
525,799
9,319,616
Plant and machinery
65,294,100
8,615,026
(4,144,700)
21,024
69,785,450
Furniture, fittings and
other equipment
10,610,006
1,322,888
(159,757)
(21,024)
11,752,113
Motor vehicles
5,680,587
674,225
(1,096,547)
5,258,265
Containers
13,680,500
2,502,253
16,182,753
--- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------104,059,010
13,640,191
(5,401,004)
112,298,197
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value
Freehold land
23,390,288		
23,390,288
Freehold buildings
41,909,716		
30,205,577
Buildings on leasehold land
7,797,670		
9,777,410
Plant and machinery
36,042,057		
46,969,882
Furniture, fittings and
other equipment
3,695,534		
2,724,614
Motor vehicles
1,781,881		
1,831,546
Containers
3,256,023		
4,297,491
Capital works in progress
26,939,221		
61,499,047
----------------------------------------------------144,812,390		
180,695,855
==============
=============
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413,743
8,414,150

(14,794,929)

6,153
(405,096)

8,793,817
65,294,100

3,695,534
1,781,881
3,256,023
26,939,221
-------------------------144,812,390
=============

23,390,288
41,909,716
7,797,670
36,042,057

13,590,180
2,757,228
(6,440,816)
703,414
10,610,006
8,607,380
633,140
(3,160,489)
(399,444)
5,680,587
12,157,258
2,077,936
(649,667)
94,973
13,680,500
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------114,808,714
14,296,197
(25,045,901)
104,059,010
--- --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

8,373,921
72,079,975

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Net book value
Freehold land
27,551,561
Freehold buildings
37,858,376
Buildings on leasehold land
7,751,597
Plant and machinery
40,465,973
Furniture, fittings and
other equipment
4,916,286
Motor vehicles
1,515,325
Containers
4,458,120
Capital works in progress
1,699,238
--------------------126,216,476
==============

Accumulated depreciation
Buildings on leasehold land
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fittings and
other equipment
Motor vehicles
Containers

12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
		
At 31 August				
At 31 August
2009
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
2010
$
$
$
$
$
Cost or valuation
Freehold land
27,551,561
(4,161,273)
23,390,288
Freehold buildings
37,858,376
4,051,340
41,909,716
Buildings on leasehold land
16,125,518
226,939
239,030
16,591,487
Plant and machinery
112,545,948
4,477,439
(15,876,463)
189,233
101,336,157
Furniture, fittings and
other equipment
18,506,466
1,171,385
(6,448,184)
1,075,873
14,305,540
Motor vehicles
10,122,705
1,016,726
(3,178,124)
(498,839)
7,462,468
Containers
16,615,378
988,138
(649,667)
(17,326)
16,936,523
Capital works in progress
1,699,238
26,145,262
(27,241)
(878,038)
26,939,221
--- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------241,025,190
34,025,889
(26,179,679)
248,871,400
--- ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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12.
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
		
The Group has plant and equipment with a net book value of $10,570,471 (2010 - $10,566,978) secured under
finance leases.
On 1 July 2011, the Group’s freehold land and buildings at Wildey were revalued at a fair value of $16,600,000
based on the advice of independent real estate appraisers. The revaluation decrease of $11,704,139 was taken
to revaluation surplus. Had the Group’s freehold land and buildings been stated at their original cost, their
carrying amount would have been $17,170,465 at 31 August 2011 (2010 - $17,170,465).
The Group commenced construction of a new Brewery in June 2010. This project is expected to be completed
in February 2012.
During the 12 months to 31 August 2011, $949,191 (2010 - $578,617) of borrowing costs have been capitalized
on qualiying assets included in construction in progress.
13.
Investment properties
			
			
Balance, beginning of the year
Change in fair value of investment properties

2011
$

2010
$

13,800,000
-

13,500,000
300,000

Balance, end of the year
13,800,000
13,800,000
		
Included in profit from operations are the following amounts arising on investment properties:
			
		
				
		
			
2011
2010
			
$
$
Rental income
Operating expenses

800,223
(359,558)

711,555
(430,211)
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440,665
281,344
		

14.
Intangible assets
			
2011
2010
			
$
$
Goodwill
Balance, beginning and end of year
578,962
578,962
		
The goodwill of $578,962 acquired through business combinations has been allocated to the milk and juice
manufacturing cash generating units.
Management has assessed the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five
year period and assuming a discount rate and growth rate of 10.31% and 2.0% (2010 - 10.31% and 1%)
respectively.
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15.
Pension plan asset
			
			

2011
$

2010
$

The amounts recognized in the statement of
		 financial position are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets
40,298,091
39,028,354
Present value of funded obligations
(30,874,836)
(31,708,204)
		
			
9,423,255
7,320,150
Unrecognized actuarial gains
(3,688,554)
(937,742)
		
Net asset recognized in the statement of financial position
5,734,701
6,382,408
		

The amounts recognized in the statement of
		 income are as follows:
Current service cost
825,333
909,628
Interest cost
2,300,356
2,276,296
Expected return on plan assets
(2,830,224)
(2,818,931)
Net actuarial gains recognized
(81,342)
(216,638)
Past service cost - vested benefits
952,949
Gains on curtailments and settlements
(204,500)
(264,996)
		
Total, included in staff costs
962,572
(114,641)
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Movements in the net asset are as follows:
Balance, beginning of the year
Net (expense) recovery recognized in the statement of income
Contributions paid

44

2011
$

2010
$

6,382,408
(962,572)
314,865

5,925,492
114,641
342,275

Balance, end of the year
5,734,701
6,382,408
		
Actual return on plan assets
2,482,385
1,379,007
		

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15.

Pension plan asset (cont’d)

Changes in the present value of the obligation are as follows:
				

$

Defined benefit obligation at 31 August 2009		
31,374,751
Interest cost		
2,276,296
Current service cost		
1,257,567
Transfers in – liabilities		
222,364
Transfers out – liabilities		
(222,364)
Curtailments		
(264,996)
Benefits paid		
(1,934,426)
Actuarial gains on obligation		
(1,000,988)
		
Defined benefit obligation at 31 August 2010		
31,708,204
Interest cost		
2,300,356
Current service cost		
1,128,149
Transfers in – liabilities		
114,589
Transfers out – liabilities		
(114,589)
Curtailments		
(204,500)
Past service cost - vested benefits		
952,949
Benefits paid		
(1,830,329)
Actuarial gains on obligation		
(3,179,993)
		
Defined benefit obligation at 31 August 2011		
30,874,836
		
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
					
			
$

The Group expects to contribute $289,932 to its defined benefit pension plans in 2012.
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Fair value of plan assets at 31 August 2009		
38,893,558
Expected return 		
2,818,931
Contributions by employer and employees		
690,214
Transfers in – assets		
222,364
Transfers out – assets		
(222,364)
Benefits paid 		
(1,934,426)
Actuarial losses on plan assets 		
(1,439,923)
		
Fair value of plan assets at 31 August 2010		
39,028,354
Expected return 		
2,830,224
Contributions by employer and employees		
617,681
Benefits paid 		
(1,830,329)
Actuarial losses on plan assets 		
(347,839)
				
Fair value of plan assets at 31 August 2011		
40,298,091
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15.

Pension plan asset (cont’d)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
			
		
2011
2010
		
%
%
Bonds
Mortgages
Equities
Mutual funds
Loans
Real estate
Other

19
8
30
20
20
3

18
9
27
19
3
19
5

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market expectations prevailing on that
date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
		
			
Principal actuarial assumptions as at 31 August were:
Discount rate at end of year
Expected return on plan assets at end of year
Future promotional salary increases
Future inflationary salary increase
Future increases in NIS ceiling for earnings
Future pension increases

2011
%

2010
%

8.00
8.00
2.00
3.50
4.50
4.00

7.50
7.50
2.00
3.50
4.00
3.50
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The pension plan of one of the subsidiaries is in the process of being wound up. The company agreed to
allocate on termination of the plan, the entire fund after provision for expenses, in an equitable and suitable
manner, among members, retired members and any other recipients of benefits under the plan. This will be
completed upon the agreement of the Trustees, upon recommendation of the Actuary, and on approval by the
Commissioner of Inland Revenue.
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16.
Post-employment medical liability
			
			
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position
		 are as follows:
Present value of unfunded obligations
Unrecognized actuarial gains
Liability recognized in the statement of financial position
		

2011
$

2010
$

1,498,751
503,038

1,489,020
385,744

2,001,789

1,874,764

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
16.
Post-employment medical liability (cont’d)
			
			
The amounts recognized in the statement of income are
as follows:
Current service cost		
Interest on obligation 		
Net actuarial (gains) losses recognized		
		
Total, included in staff costs		
		

2011
$

2010
$

79,874
115,933
(22,541)

120,025
162,589
18,581

173,266

301,195

Net liability, beginning of year		
1,874,764
Net expense recognized in the statement of income		
173,266
Contributions		
(46,241)
		
Net liability, end of year		
2,001,789
			

1,613,182
301,194
(39,612)

Movements in the net liability recognized in
		 the statement of financial position are as follows:

Changes in the present value of the obligation are as follows:
					

1,874,764

$
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Obligation at 31 August 2009			
2,067,640
Interest cost			
162,589
Current service cost			
120,025
Past service cost – vested benefits			
1,339
Contributions			
(32,416)
Actuarial gain			
(830,157)
		
Obligation at 31 August 2010
1,489,020
Interest cost			
115,933
Current service cost			
79,874
Past service cost – vested benefits			
1
Contributions			
(46,241)
Actuarial gain			
(139,836)
		
Obligation at 31 August 2011
1,498,751
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16.

Post-employment medical liability (cont’d)

		
Principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting
purposes at 31 August were as follows:
Discount rate at end of year
Future medical claims/premium inflation

2011

2010

8.00%
4.50%

7.50%
4.00%

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in healthcare costs would have the following
effects:
2011
Effect on the aggregate current service cost
		 and interest cost
Effect on the obligation
2010
Effect on the aggregate current service cost
		 and interest cost
Effect on the obligation
17.

$

$

236,932

163,723

1,757,664

1,291,285

$

$

347,241

232,460

1,753,632

1,277,650

2011
$

2010
$

597,000
(39,800)

597,000
-

557,200

597,000

Grant

			
			
Balance, beginning of year
Received during the year
Released to the income statement
Balance, end of year
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In 2010 a grant was received by the Group for the purchase of certain items of plant and equipment. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.
			
			
Current
Non-current

2010
$

59,700
497,500

39,800
557,200

			
557,200
597,000
		
18. Long-term liabilities
			
			

2011
$

2010
$

27,197,524
7,305,407
2,098,877

18,023,737
8,676,203
1,000,000
2,116,818

			
		 Less: Current portion

36,601,808
(11,741,911)

29,816,758
(7,541,958)

		

24,859,897

22,274,800

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
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2011
$

CIBC FirstCaribbean International Bank
Tetra Pak S.A.
BH Pensions Limited
SLU Beverages Ltd.

Long-term portion

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
18.

Long-term liabilities (cont’d)
(i) The CIBC FirstCaribbean International Bank loans bear interest at rates between 6.55% and 9.05% (2010
between 7.05% and 9.55%). The loans are repayable in various installments of principal and interest. The
Group has granted security for all the bank loans and the bank overdrafts as follows: (a) a debenture over its
fixed and floating assets registered and stamped to cover $40,000,000; (b) the assignment of the insurance
policies on various properties and other permanent fixtures for sums assured totaling $16,512,750; (c) a
letter of undertaking to the bank to provide a mortgage over a subsidiary’s assets. There are also certain
covenants and other conditions which the Group must maintain.
(ii) The three Tetra Pak leases bear an interest rate of 3 Month Libor plus 2.5% with quarterly and annual lease
payments over 4 years. All of the leases are secured by certain equipment (See Note 12). Future lease
payments due within one year are $4,306,963 (2010 - $2,599,388). Lease payments due after one year total
$2,998,444 (2010 - $6,076,815).
(iii) The loan from the pension scheme was fully repaid at the beginning of the year.
(iv) In 2010 the parent company of the Group entered into a convertible debt purchase agreement with Latin
Capital Fund 1, L.P. and SLU Beverages Ltd. (the Lenders) and issued 56 senior secured convertible
promissory notes to SLU Beverages Ltd. Each note carries a par value of $1,000,000 and is convertible in
whole or in part at the option of the note holder into common shares of the parent of the Group at $4.00
per common share. The notes carry an interest rate of 1 year LIBOR plus 1.75%, payable bi-annually on
30 June and 31 December. The shares of Banks (Barbados) Breweries Limited and Barbados Bottling Co.
Limited have been pledged as security for the notes. At 31 August 2011, 3 notes remained unconverted.
Any notes not converted will mature on 28 February 2020. The equity component of the notes issued but
not converted is reflected in share capital. The liability component is reflected in long-term liabilities.
The principal and interest under the notes may not be prepaid by the Company, in whole or in part, prior to
the maturity date, without the consent of the note holders. None of the notes or common shares obtained
by the conversion of the notes shall be subject to repurchase, purchase, or redemption at the option
of the Company, and they shall only be redeemed or repurchased at the option of the note holders. It
is a condition of the agreement that no further shares in Banks Holdings Limited be issued except with
the written consent of the Lenders until such times as the Lenders cease to hold shares and/or notes
convertible into shares in Banks Holdings Limited. There are also certain covenants and other conditions
which the Group must maintain until such time as the Lenders cease to hold shares obtained by the
conversion of the notes and/or notes convertible into shares in Banks Holdings Limited.
Share capital
Authorized:
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of shares of one class designated as common shares.

Stated and issued:
			
Number
			
2011
2010
					
At the beginning of the year
64,853,760
Shares issued during the year
Shares issued in lieu of bonus
Shares subscribed for in lieu of bonus
Employee stock option plan
Share-based payment
Equity component of convertible
		 promissory notes
At the end of the year

64,853,760

Stated
2011
$

2010
$

51,577,301
13,250,000
26,144
315
-

145,991,082
65,650
52,173

91,897,688
53,000,000
96,733
1,049
112,430

-

17,941

883,182

64,853,760

146,126,846

145,991,082		

At 31 August 2011 subscriptions were made by employees for 18,236 common shares for a consideration of
$65,650. These shares were issued subsequent to the year end.
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19.

Share capital (cont’d)
Share-based payment plans
At a Special General Meeting held on 28 May 1998, the shareholders approved an Employee Stock Option
Plan (“ESOP”) in respect of the senior management of the Group for shares of not more than 5% of the shares
outstanding at that date. The term of the options is seven years from the grant date and the options are granted
at the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the Barbados Stock Exchange as at the date of allotment, less
a 10% discount. Under the terms of the ESOP, the options vest in equal monthly installments over a period of
three years.
As at 31 August 2011 stock options on 663,256 (2010 – 784,878) shares at prices ranging from $3.33 to $3.87
were outstanding. The expense arising from equity-settled share-based transactions during the year totaled
$52,173 (2010 - $112,430). There have been no cancellations or modifications to the plan during 2011 or 2010.
The movement in the number of share options and the weighted average exercise prices (“WAEP”) are as
follows:

			
Number
			
2011
2010
					
Outstanding at beginning
of the year
784,878
750,771
Granted during the year
200,000
Exercised during the year
(315)
Forfeited during the year
(55,762)
(38,029)
Expired during the year
(65,860)
(127,549)

WAEP
2011
$

2010
$

3.55
3.60
3.33

3.40
3.50
3.33
3.57
2.61		

Outstanding at end of the year

663,256

784,878

3.57

3.54

Exercisable at end of the year

618,956

671,011

3.57

3.55

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted is estimated at the date of grant using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used for the years ended 31 August:
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Dividend yield (%)
Expected volatility (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Expected life of the option (years)

2011

2010

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

3.0
15.0
5.75
6.0

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. There were no options issued in the year ended
31 August 2011 and consequently no assumptions were determined.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
20.
Capital reserves
		

Revaluation				
surplus
Other
Total
		
$
$
$
			
Balance as of 31 August 2009
42,176,304
(129,364)
42,046,940
Share of revaluation surplus and fair value
		 reserve of associated companies
23,286
23,286
Balance as of 31 August 2010
Share of revaluation surplus and fair value
		 reserve of associated companies
Revaluation of freehold land and
		 buildings (Note 12)
Balance as at 31 August 2011

42,176,304

(106,078)

42,070,226

-

25,966

25,966

(11,704,139)

-

(11,704,139)

30,472,165

(80,112)

30,392,053

Other reserves
This reserve is comprised primarily of the Group’s share of fair value gains (losses) on available for sale assets
of an associated company.						
21.

Related party balances and transactions
The amounts receivable from and amounts payable to other related parties represent transactions with
subsidiaries of The Barbados Shipping and Trading Co. Ltd.

			
			
Receivables
Associated companies
Other related parties
		
			
			
Payables
Associated companies
Other related parties
		
			
			

2011
$

2010
$

1,091,009
3,484,475

2,224,273
3,971,057

4,575,484

6,195,330

1,084,273
300,647

1,474,555
338,229

1,384,920

1,812,784
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Included in accounts receivable and accounts payable are the following related party balances:
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21.

Related party balances and transactions (cont’d)
During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with its associates and subsidiaries of
The Barbados Shipping and Trading Co. Ltd.

			
			
Sales
Purchases

2011
$

2010
$

39,859,639
25,735,001

40,341,066
27,430,476

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made under normal market prices. Outstanding balances
at the year end are unsecured and interest free. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any
related party receivables or payables and the Group has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating to
amounts owed by related parties for the years ended 31 August 2011 and 31 August 2010.
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
			
			
Short-term employment benefits
Post-employment benefits
		
			
			
22.
Earnings per share

2011
$

2010
$

2,776,662
273,708

2,886,453
269,172

3,050,370

3,155,625

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations is calculated based on earnings of $9,300,025 (2010 $7,360,339) and a weighted average of 64,853,760 (2010 - 53,811,962) shares in issue during the year. Diluted
earnings per share from continuing operations is as a result of ordinary shares granted under the Company’s
ESOP and unconverted convertible promissory notes amounted to 14¢ (2010 - 15¢) based on a potential
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue of 64,860,599 (2010 - 53,966,764).
23.

Operating lease commitments
The lease expense for the year was $57,250 (2010 - $65,560).
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Future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable leases are as follows as of 31 August:
			
			
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
		
			
			

2010
$

14,133
-

56,739
52,997

14,133

109,736

Future minimum lease receivables under the non-cancellable leases are as follows as of 31 August:
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2011
$

Within one year
			

2011
$

2010
$

813,056

862,784

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended 31 August 2011
24.

Commitments and contingencies
Capital commitments
Capital expenditure of $10,442,187 (2010 - $65,603,473) was approved by the Directors and Nil (2010 $54,132,820) was contracted for.
Litigation
As at 31 August 2011, there were certain legal proceedings outstanding against the Group. No provision has
been made as professional advice indicates that it is unlikely that significant loss will arise or that it would be
premature at this stage of the action to determine that eventuality.

25.

Dividend
Subsequent to year end, a dividend of 9¢ per share, amounting to $5,836,838 (2010 - 12¢ per share, amounting
to $7,782,451) was approved by the Directors. This dividend will be accounted for as an appropriation of
retained earnings in the next financial year.
Risk management
The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise the bank overdraft, trade payables, deposits owed to
customers and long-term liabilities which comprise bank loans, finance lease obligations and senior secured
convertible promissory notes. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations and to finance investments. The Group has various financial assets such as trade receivables, loans
receivable, investments and cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations. The Group
does not enter into derivative transactions. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair
values of financial instruments. The Group manages its interest rate exposure by using a mixture of fixed and
variable rate debt. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market interest rates relates primarily to
its long-term liabilities.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate, with other
variables held constant of the Group’s income before taxation. There is no impact on the Group’s equity.
		
Increase/decrease
		
in basis points

2011
Effect on profit
before tax

2010
Effect on profit
before tax

		
+-50
222,427
156,272
		
Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group operates primarily in the Barbados market and is therefore not subject
to significant foreign currency risk. Management monitors its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and
employs appropriate strategies to mitigate any potential losses.
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Approximately 5% of the Group’s sales are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operating unit making the sale, whilst 61% of purchases are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency. However, the majority of the Group’s transactions
are in United States dollars which has a fixed exchange rate to the functional currency. Fluctuations in currencies
other than United States dollars are not considered significant.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may default on their obligations to the company. The
amount of the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its financial
assets.
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26.

Risk management (cont’d)
Concentration of credit risk
Concentrations of credit risk may arise from exposures to a single debtor or to groups of debtors having a
common characteristic such that their ability to meet their obligations is expected to be affected similarly by
changes in economic or other conditions. Substantially all the assets of the Group are located in Barbados.
The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note 7. For transactions that do not occur
in the country of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms without the approval of
Management.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under
normal and stress circumstances. The Group monitors its liquidity risk by considering the maturity of both its
financial assets and projected cash flows from operations. Where possible, the Group utilizes available credit
facilities such as loans, overdrafts and other financing options.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts and bank loans.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 August based on
contractual undiscounted payments.
Year ended 31 August 2011
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Bank overdraft
Accounts payable
Provision for deposits
owed to customers
Long-term liabilities

On
Demand

1
year

2 to 5
years

>5
years

7,883,566
- 15,232,107

-

-

560,370
- 10,746,203

14,913,446

18,441,135

560,370
44,100,784

2 to 5
years

>5
years

Total

-

-

1,437,623
12,675,475

770,474
7,957,331 17,070,482

10,040,703

770,474
36,068,516

Total
7,883,566
15,232,107		

Year ended 31 August 2010
		
Bank overdraft
Accounts payable
Provision for deposits
owed to customers
Long-term liabilities

On
Demand

1
year

1,437,623
-

12,675,475

1,000,000

Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating
and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.
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The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 August 2011 and 31 August 2010.
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Fair value of financial instruments
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the Group’s financial
instruments that are carried in the financial statements:

Financial assets
Cash and short-term deposits
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft
Accounts payable
Provisions for deposits owed
to customers
Long-term liabilities

Carrying amount
2011
2010
$
$

2011
$

Fair value

2010
$

16,972,419
495,003
11,878,945
-

51,296,676
693,753
14,968,255
16,447

16,972,419
495,003
11,878,945
-

51,296,676
693,753
14,968,255
16,447

7,883,566
15,232,107

1,437,623
12,675,475

7,883,566
15,232,107

1,437,623
12,675,475

560,370
36,601,808

770,474
29,816,758

560,370
36,601,808

770,474
29,816,758

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities comprise the Group’s cash and short-term deposits,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, provision for deposits owed to customers and bank overdraft and
approximate their fair values because of their short-term maturities.
Long-term loans receivable and payable are at variable rates and consequently their fair values approximate
their carrying values.
Fair value of short-term investments is derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available at the
reporting date.
Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 August 2011, the Group held the following financial instruments carried at fair value on the statement
of financial position:
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:
Level 1:
Level 2:
Level 3:

quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identifiable assets or liabilities.
other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 		
observable, either directly or indirectly.
techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not 		
based on observable market data.
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27.

Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)
Fair value hierarchy (cont’d)
Assets measured at fair value

		
		
		
Financial assets at fair value
		 through profit or loss
Short-term investments

31 August
2011
$

Level 1
$

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

495,003

495,003

-

-

		
		
		
Financial assets at fair value
		 through profit or loss
Short-term investments

31 August
2010
$

Level 1
$

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

693,753

693,753

-

-

During the reporting period ending 31 August 2011, there were no transfers between level 1 and 2 fair value
adjustments.
28.

Discontinued operations
During 2008, the Directors decided to discontinue the manufacturing operations of Duraplast Inc.
At the year end the Directors were still actively pursuing the disposal of its shareholding in the entity.
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The results of the discontinued operations (net of inter-group transactions) for the years ending 31 August 2011
and 31 August 2010 are presented below:
			
2011
2010
			
$
$

56

Other income
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of assets held for sale
Selling, general and administrative expenses
			
Income (loss) for the year
			
			
			
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations

299
(23)

8,726
(10,903)
(563,640)
(3,524)

276

(569,341)

2011
$

2010
$

-

(1¢)
(1¢)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the income (loss) for the year from discontinued operations
of $276 (2010 - $569,341). To calculate the basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share from
discontinued operations, the weighted average number of ordinary shares for both basic and diluted amounts
is disclosed in Note 22.

BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED
Financial Highlights

						
						

		
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
						
REVENUE ($000’S)
177,325
184,045
185,724
183,080
176,425
NET ASSETS ($000’s)		 298,063
308,087
253,831
227,070
196,813
NET INCOME ($000’s)		
9,300
7,360
8,905
10,617
22,860
						
EARNINGS PER SHARE (cents) (a)		
14.0
14.0
17.0
21.0
54.0
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE (cents)		
9.0
12.0
14.0
14.0
16.0
						
TIMES DIVIDEND COVERED		
1.56
1.17
1.21
1.50
3.38
						
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE ($) (b)		
4.60
4.75
4.92
4.48
4.55
						
SHARE PRICE ($) ( c )		
3.82
4.13
4.39
4.20
4.11
						
P/E RATIO		
27.29
29.50
25.82
20.00
7.61

350,000
300,000

$000's

250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000
50,000
-

2011

2010
REVENUE ($000'S)

2009
NET ASSETS

2008

2007

NET INCOME

50.0

Cents

40.0
30.0
20.0
10.0
-

2011

2010
EARNINGS PER SHARE (cents) (a)

2009

2008

2007

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE (cents)

Notes:
(a) Computed using the weighted average ordinary shares in issue during the year
(b) Computed using the total ordinary shares in issue at year-end
(c) Closing price as quoted by the Barbados Stock Exchange on the last day of trading for the financial year
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MANAGEMENT PROXY CIRCULAR
Company No: 15726

Management is required by the Companies Act Chapter 308 of the Laws of Barbados (hereinafter called
‘the Companies Act’) to send, with the Notice convening the Meeting, forms of proxy. By complying
with the Companies Act, Management is deemed to be soliciting proxies within the meaning of the
Companies Act.
This Management Proxy Circular accompanies the Notice of the Fifty-third (53rd) Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders of Banks Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) to be held at the Lloyd Erskine
Sandiford Centre, Two Mile Hill, St. Michael, Barbados on Wednesday the 29th day of February, 2012
at 4:00 p.m. (hereinafter called ‘the Meeting’) and is furnished in connection with the solicitation of
proxies by the Management of the Company for use at the Meeting, or any adjournments thereof. The
solicitation will primarily be by mail. The cost of the solicitation will be borne by the Company.
Proxies

A shareholder who is entitled to vote at a meeting of shareholders has the right by means of the
enclosed form of proxy to appoint a person to represent him by inserting the name of such person in
the space indicated in the form of proxy.
Proxies given by shareholders for use at the meeting may be revoked by the shareholder giving such
proxy at any time prior to their use. In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by Law, a
proxy may be revoked by an instrument in writing executed by the shareholder or by his/her attorney
in writing; if the shareholder is a company, executed under its corporate seal or by any duly authorised
officer or attorney thereof, and deposited at the registered office of the Company at Wildey Main Road,
Wildey, St. Michael at any time up to 4:15 p.m. on Tuesday, 28th February, 2012 being the last business
day preceding the day of the meeting, or any adjournment thereof, at which the proxy is to be used or
with the Chairman of such meeting, on the day of the meeting, or adjournment thereof, and upon either
of such deposits the proxy is revoked.

The Directors of the Company have not fixed a record date for determining the shareholders who are
entitled to receive notice of the meeting. In accordance with the Companies Act, the statutory default
date therefore applies. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on the day immediately
preceding the day on which notice is given under Section 109(1) of the Companies Act will be entitled
to receive notice of the meeting.
Only such registered holders of common shares of the company will be entitled to vote at the meeting.
Each holder is entitled to one vote for each share held. As at the date hereof there are 64,853,760
common shares without par value of the Company issued and outstanding.
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Election of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of members who retire in rotation annually. On 31st December, 2011
there were ten (10) Board members. The number of Directors of the Company to be elected at the
meeting is four (4). The following are the names of the persons proposed as nominees for election
as Directors of the Company and for whom it is intended that votes will be cast for their election as
Directors pursuant to the forms of proxy enclosed herewith:Nominee for Director				

Present Principal Occupation

S.P Musson Son & Co Ltd.				

Corporate Entity

Mr Joaquin Enrique Origgi				

Corporate Executive

Mr George Gladstone Daniel McDonald		

Corporate Executive

Sir Allan Fields 				

Corporate Executive

With respect to the four (4) persons nominated, the term of office for each person so elected will
expire at the close of the third Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company following
his election or until his successor is elected or appointed. The Management of the Company does not
contemplate that any of the persons named above will, for any reason, become unable or unwilling to
serve as a director.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Sir Allan Fields, S.P. Musson Son & Co. Ltd, Mr. Joaquin Enrique Origgi and Mr. George Gladstone
Daniel McDonald are presently Directors of the Company and will retire at the close of the FiftyThird Annual General Meeting in accordance with the provision of Clause 4.4 of the By-Laws of
the Company but, being qualified, are eligible for re-election. Sir Allan Fields and S.P. Musson Son
& Co. Ltd were elected at the Fiftieth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Thursday,
February 5th, 2009 for a period ending at the close of the third Annual General Meeting after their
election. Mr Joaquin Enrique Origgi was appointed by the Board of Directors to fill a vacancy created
by the retirement of Mr. Ruall Harris, who was elected at a Shareholders Meeting held on Thursday,
February 5th, 2009 for a period ending at the close of the third Annual General Meeting after his
election and retired on 31st July, 2010. Mr. George Gladstone Daniel McDonald was appointed by the
Board of Directors to fill a vacancy created by the retirement of Mr. A. A. Khan, who was elected at
a Shareholders Meeting held on Thursday, February 5th, 2009 for a period ending at the close of the
third Annual General Meeting after his election and retired on 24th February, 2010.
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Appointment of Auditors

It is proposed to nominate the firm Ernst & Young, the incumbent auditors of the accounts of the
Company, as auditors of the Company to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders.
Discretionary Authority

Management knows of no matter to come before the meeting other than the matters referred to
in the notice of the meeting enclosed herewith. However, if any other matters which are not now
known to Management should properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof, the
shares represented by proxies in favour of Management nominees will be voted on any such matter in
accordance with the best judgment of the proxy nominee. Similar discretionary authority is conferred
with respect to amendments to the matters identified in the notice of the meeting. The contents of this
Management Proxy Circular and the sending thereof to the holders of the common shares of the Company
have been approved by the Directors of the Company.

COMPANY NO:15726
Proxy Form

I/We ………………………………………………………………………................................................... of
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....……
shareholder(s) of BANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED (‘the Company’) hereby appoint
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………of
… … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … … o r, f a i l i n g h i m ,
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………of
………………………………………………………………………………………………................................…
as the nominee of the undersigned to attend and act for the undersigned and on behalf of the
undersigned at the Fifty-third (53rd) Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Banks
Holdings Limited (the ‘Company’) to be held at the Lloyd Erskine Sandiford Centre, Two Mile
Hill, St. Michael, Barbados on Wednesday the 29th day of February, 2012 at 4:00 pm and at any
adjour nment thereof in the same manner, to the same extent and with the same powers as if the
undersigned were present at the said meeting or such adjour nment or adjour nments thereof.
Dated this

day of

, 2012.

……………………………………………………………….
(Please print name of Shareholder)

……………………………………………………………….
(Signature of Shareholder)

NOTES: 1. (a) A shareholder who is entitled to vote at any meeting of the shareholders may 		
			 by means of a proxy appoint a proxy holder, or one or more alter nate proxy		
			
holders, none of whom need be shareholders, to attend and act at the meeting in
			
the manner and to the extent authorised by the proxy and with the authority 		
			
conferred by the proxy.
		 (b)
			
			
			

In the case of a shareholder who is a body corporate or association, votes at 		
a meeting of shareholders may be given by any individual authorised by a 		
resolution of the directors or gover ning body of that body corporate or 		
association to represent it at meetings of the shareholders of the Company

2. A proxy must be executed in writing by the shareholder or his attor ney authorised in
		writing.
3. Proxy appointments are required to be deposited at the registered office of the 		
		 Company, Wildey Main Road, Wildey, St. Michael, Barbados no later than 4:15 p.m.
		 on the 27th day of February 2012.

Wildey Main Road, Wildey, St. Michael, Barbados. Tel: 227-6700, Fax: 227-6729
www.thebhlgroup.com

